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ATTACHMENT F: TECHNICAL PROPOSAL

Respondent:
	




Instructions:  Request for Proposal (RFP) 24-77468 is a solicitation by the State of Indiana in which organizations are invited to compete for a contract amongst other respondents in a formal evaluation process.  Please be aware that the evaluation of your organization’s proposal will be completed by a team of State of Indiana team members and your organization’s score will be reflective of that evaluation. Please review the requirements outlined in Attachment L – Scope of Work carefully. For all areas in which subcontractors will be performing a portion of the work, clearly describe their roles and responsibilities, related qualifications, and experience, and how you will maintain oversight of the subcontractors’ activities.

Please supply all information that is requested in the yellow boxes. Respondents must organize their proposal in the exact order of questions provided in this document followed by their answers. However, the Respondent may respond in the format of their choosing provided their response maintains the order proposed in this template. Please indicate any attachments that have been included to support your responses. A completed Technical Proposal is a requirement for proposal submission. Technical Proposals should not exceed 60 pages, excluding attachments. Failure to complete and submit this form may impact your proposal’s responsiveness.  

1. Minimum Requirements 
For each minimum requirement listed in section 1.2 of Attachment L, please clearly explain how you meet the requirement. 



2. Executive Summary
Provide a brief executive summary of your proposed approach to deliver the scope of work. Be certain to include a description of any subcontractors with whom you are partnering to fulfill the scope of the Contract and what roles these subcontractors will have during the life of the Contract.




3. Background and Experience 
1. Describe your company as well as your proposed project staff’s background and experience. Include the following information, at a minimum:
a. A list of organizations for which you have delivered services similar in complexity and scope.  
i. Include the client’s name, project description and goals, the methods used (clearly stating if they are the same methods you are proposing here), your project role, duration of the role, and project results/outputs.
ii. Describe any problems and failures that you encountered in delivering your services, how these were resolved, and what were the lessons learned.
2. Describe your experience creating public health and/or healthcare readiness assessments for governmental entities. 
3. Describe your experience with engaging and collaborating with local community partners such as Local Health Departments (LHDs) or Health Care Coalitions (HCCs) for assessments, workshops, and other forms of stakeholder engagement.
4. Describe your experience with and/or knowledge of the requirements of the Center for Disease Control and Prevention’s (CDC)  Public Health Emergency Preparedness Program (PHEP) and the Administration for Strategic Preparedness and Response’s (ASPR) Hospital Preparedness Program (HPP), or similar federal funding programs. 
5. Describe your experience evaluating entities against PHEP and HPP capabilities or similar standards. 
6. Describe your experience producing and/or analyzing Threats and Hazard Identification Risk Assessment (THIRA) and Stakeholder Preparedness Review (SPR) or similar risk assessments. 
7. Describe your experience creating training resources and guides for risk assessments or similar tools.
8. Describe your experience aggregating data into statewide reports and/or reports of similar size. 
9. Describe any formal corrective actions that your company has experienced under previous contracts.



4. Proposed Methodology for Phase 1 Activities and Deliverables

1. What survey platform do you plan to use to deliver the assessments and why is this your recommended platform?
2. Describe your approach to researching, benchmarking, and developing the proposed content for the following tools:
a. Jurisdictional Risk Assessment (JRA);
b. Hazard Vulnerability Assessment (HVA);
c. Public Health and Healthcare Readiness Assessment (PHHRA);
d. Preparedness and Capabilities Assessment (PCA).
3. Describe your proposed approach to ensuring you are operating under guidance from the latest PHEP and HPP capabilities and frameworks. Describe your proposed approach to ensuring the alignment of the assessments with the standards and measures requirements for measure 2.2.1A of the Public Health Accreditation Board (PHAB) Standards and Measures for Reaccreditation (V 2022). 
4. Describe your proposed approach to incorporating the State-provided THIRA, HIRA, and SPR data in the development of the assessments. 
5. Given the information in this RFP and your knowledge of Indiana, what data elements do you propose to utilize in the development of the JRA and HVA? (Note: final data elements utilized will be discussed and approved by IDOH after contract award.) 
6. Given the information in this RFP and your knowledge of Indiana, what hazards do you propose to examine in the JRA, and HVA? (Note: final hazards examined will be discussed and approved by IDOH after contract award.) 
7. Given the information in this RFP and your knowledge of Indiana, what risk groups do you propose to examine in the JRA and HVA? (Note: final risk groups examined will be discussed and approved by IDOH after contract award.) 
8. Given the information in this RFP and your knowledge of Indiana, what scoring components do you propose to utilize in the JRA and HVA? (Note: final scoring components will be discussed and approved by IDOH after contract award.)  
9. Describe your proposed approach to developing a Communications Plan that informs the LHDs and HCCs of the JRA, HVA, and PHHRA processes. 
10. Describe your proposed approach to developing webinar and training materials and 
11. What is your proposed approach to ensure engagement, understanding, and buy in with local partners, including LHDs and HCCs? Have you employed this approach before, if so, where and what were lessons learned that you will take into this project?

	



5. Proposed Methodology for Phase 2 Activities and Deliverables

1. Describe your proposed approach/best practices to ensuring that attendees of webinars will be educated on the JRA, HVA, and PHHRA processes and how to complete the tools. 
2. What is your proposed approach to developing the evaluation surveys for the LHDs and the HCCs? 

	



6. Proposed Methodology for Phase 3 Activities and Deliverables
1. Describe your proposed approach to conducting the three in-person regional IPP workshops and what staff you propose to be on-site throughout the duration of the workshops. 
2. Describe your proposed approach to conducting a remote, statewide IPP workshop with state agencies and 
3. Describe your proposed approach to developing the IDOH IPP. Include your experience recommending planning, organization, equipment, training, and exercise (POETE) priorities based on threats, hazards, and capabilities. Also include your proposed approach to collaborating with local partners and state agencies in the development of the IDOH IPP. 

	



7. Example Materials
Please provide example templates, reports, and  other relevant materials such as project tools from previous work you have performed of a similar nature to this RFP scope. Where relevant, describe how these templates/tools will be adapted for the State’s needs. 

	



8. Project Management 
Explain how you propose to fulfill the requirements outlined in Attachment L Section 4, including but not limited to the specific elements highlighted below:
1. Propose a preliminary schedule for all three phases of the project, including when the submission of required deliverables and activities will occur.
2. Confirmation of your agreement with the requirements of Attachment L Section 4.
3. Your company’s escalation process for any issues that may arise. 

	



9. Staffing
1. Describe your overall proposed staffing plan by Phase to fulfill required activities outlined in Attachment L. The staffing plan shall detail each position, their responsibilities, and their full-time equivalent (FTE) percentage commitment by Phase. 
a. For each position, indicate the number of individuals in those roles and their FTE level.
b. Provide resumes for all individuals proposed to fulfill these roles
2. Include an organizational chart for the proposed project team. Please make clear which are your staff and which are subcontractor staff. 
3. Confirm that all proposed staff, regardless of position, will be working from within the continental United States. Confirm that the proposed Phase 3 staff can meet the on-site expectations for the regional workshops. 
4. Subcontractors:
a. Describe the role of any subcontractors you will utilize for this Contract, including how/if their role changes during the life of the Contract.
b. Indicate your prior experience with each subcontractor.
c. Describe their experience and expertise as it relates to supporting the Contract scope.

	



10. Billing and Invoicing 
Please confirm that you understand and accept the invoicing approach described in Attachment L, Section 6. 

	



11. Performance Standards  
Please confirm that you understand and accept the requirements and performance standards that will be reported to the State as described in Attachment L, Section 7. 

	



12.  Additional Terms and Definitions
Please list any additional terms and definitions used by your company or industry that you would like the State to consider incorporating in the contract.  The State will not accept terms and definitions introduced after award during contract finalization and implementation.
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13. Exemptions, Substitutions, or Conditions to State Boilerplate
Please confirm you have carefully reviewed all requirements listed in RFP Section 1.4.  Should your company have any exceptions, substitutions, or conditions for the State’s consideration, please list them below. The State will not accept exceptions, substitutions, or conditions introduced after award, during contract finalization and implementation.

	





